
Aurora City Council Agenda September 08, 2015 Page 1 of 2 
  

AGENDA 
Aurora City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, September 08, 2015, at 7:00 P.M. 
City Council Chambers, Aurora City Hall 

21420 Main Street NE, Aurora, OR 97002 
 

 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER OF THE AURORA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
  

2. CITY RECORDER DOES ROLL CALL 
 Mayor Graupp 
 Councilor Sahlin 
 Councilor Vlcek 
 Councilor Southard 
 Councilor Sallee 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
a) City Council Minutes – August, 2015 
b) Planning Commission – August, 2015 
c) Historic Review Board Meeting Minutes – July, 2015 

 
4. CORRESPONDENCE - NA 

 
 

5. VISITOR 
 

 Anyone wishing to address the Aurora City Council concerning items not already on the 
 meeting agenda may do so in this section.  No decision or action will be made, but the Aurora 
 City Council could look into the matter and provide some response in the future. 
  
 

6. REPORTS 
 

a) Mayors Report 
b) Marion County Deputy 
c) Finance Officer 
d) Public Works 
e) Parks Committee 
f) City Recorder 
g) City Attorney 

• Discussion and or update on Eddy Property.  
 
 



Aurora City Council Agenda September 08, 2015 Page 2 of 2 
  

 
7. ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 

 
a) Resolution Number 702 A Resolution Amending Resolution 651 to Include Employee + 

Children.  
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a) Discussion and or Conversation with John Ashley, City Engineer.  
b) Discussion and or Action on Email Regarding Charging a Fee for SEDCOR Applications.  

 
9. OLD BUSINESS  

 
a) Discussion and or Action on Appeal Notice (2015-01) Historic District Overlay Sills Property 

 
10. ADJOURN 

 
  



City Council Minutes August 11, 2015 Page 1 of 10 
  

Minutes 
Aurora City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, August 11, 2015, at 7:00 P.M. 
City Council Chambers, Aurora City Hall 

21420 Main Street NE, Aurora, OR 97002 
 

 
STAFF PRESENT  Kelly Richardson, City Recorder 
   Mary Lambert, Finance Officer 
   Darrel Lockard, Public Works Superintendent 
   Dennis Koho, City Attorney 
   Deputy Huitt, Marion County Sheriff’s Office 
 
STAFF ABSENT:   
 
VISITORS PRESENT:  
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 Meeting was called to order by Mayor Bill Graupp at 7:00 pm 
 

2. CITY RECORDER DOES ROLL CALL 
 Mayor Graupp- Present 
 Councilor Sahlin - Present 
 Councilor Sallee-Present 
 Councilor Brotherton-Present 
 Councilor Vlcek - Present 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
a) City Council Meeting Minutes – June, 2015, Councilor Vlcek had a few clarification questions 

in the Planning Commission minutes regarding the bond issue. Councilor Vlcek also states 
that in the July Council minutes that he had not mentioned the Fire Dept property however 
he did refer to the property across the street from the old hotel property. Vlcek also asked 
about the action item on pg 4.  

b) Planning Commission – June, July, 2015 
c) Historic Review Board Meeting – May, 2015 

 
ACTION ITEM;  

  
Motion to approve the consent agenda as corrected was made by Councilor Vlcek and is 
seconded by Councilor Sallee. Motion approved by all.  

 
4. CORRESPONDENCE –  

 
a) 2015 Legislative Report (electronic packet only) 

 



City Council Minutes August 11, 2015 Page 2 of 10 
  

5. VISITORS 
 

 Anyone wishing to address the Aurora City Council concerning items not already on the 
 meeting agenda may do so in this section.  No decision or action will be made, but the Aurora 
 City Council could look into the matter and provide some response in the future. 
 No comments were made during this section.  

 
 
Susan Black wanted to thank all of the volunteers who participated in Colony Days events.  
 
 

6. REPORTS 
 
a) Mayor Bill Graupp 

• Mayor reports the recent resignation of Raymond Lowe in public works and that the 
position has been posted.  The recent spill was approximately 20,000 gallons of treated 
water it was caused by a broken flow meter on the affluent meter. DEQ has been 
notified and the new parts have been ordered. We are currently working on the 
completion of the waste water master plan.  

• I have also been kicking around an idea and applying for a grant for a dog park I would 
like to have the North Marion school children help us design the dog park. I believe this 
would be a good use of the land by the pudding river.  

• SB534 has passed and has been signed by the Governor.  
• Recently the North Marion middle school and high school kids did the Mayor for a day 

writing contest and there were some very good papers written.  
• Also I have been speaking to the Mayor of Mt. Angel and Silverton regarding a bike path 

idea to possibly adjoin our towns by way of Meridian Rd.  
• Also during our discussions many of the Mayors are simply doing the same regulations 

for MMD and recreational marijuana.  
 

 
Council discussed, NA 
 
ACTION ITEM: NA 
 

 
 

b) Marion County Deputy 
• Deputy report there has not been anything critical is been all routine calls. Except we did 

have a theft that occurred at the Aurora Maternity Clinic which is under investigation.  
• The majority of people are traveling at approximately 20-25 mile per hour on Liberty but 

please let me know if that changes.  
 

Council discussed with Officer Huitt the temporary road closures during the Colony Days 
events Councilor Vlcek shared some frustrations. As Officer Huitt began explaining City 
Recorder Richardson wanted to make it clear that these were temporary closure while 
the events were taking place people were simply asked to wait until it was safe to 



City Council Minutes August 11, 2015 Page 3 of 10 
  

proceed they were not prevented from continuing there commute. Officer Huitt also 
explained to the Council that he was present during a few encounters with the public 
regarding the road closures and they were handled without incident.   
 
ACTION ITEM: Action to be…… 
 

c) Traffic Safety Committee 
• Traffic report, Mayor Graupp states that unless we are going to have a TSC then we 

should drop this from the agenda.  
   
  Council discussed….. 
 

ACTION ITEM: Remove this from the agenda.  
 

d) Finance Officer  
• Finance officer reports that you all have the most up to date treasures report and that 

everything looks good.  
 
Council discussed nothing at this time and there were no questions.  
 
ACTION ITEM: NA 
 

e) Public Works 
• Public Works report is given by the Mayor in Lockard’s absence. Mayor Graupp reads 

the report as presented.  There are a few questions by the Council regarding the status 
of the trees in the park along with a few concerns regarding the need of work being 
done on 2nd street. Councilor Vlcek also asks why did we not apply for the 50.000 dollar 
Community Development grant that we normally do each year.  Councilor Southard also 
points out a leak at or near the Park and wants a deadline as when it will be fixed. 
Mayor Graupp informs the group that they are aware of the leak and it’s on the 
schedule to be fixed along with the other items as well. The trees will be taken care of 
this week.  
 
Council discussed briefly that there needs to be a schedule of ongoing projects in the 
report. City Recorder Richardson volunteers to help Lockard with a better report style.  
 
ACTION ITEM: Action to be…… 
 

f) Parks Committee 
• Park report 

 
  Council discussed the need of a quote for the extra areas of the downtown area from  
  Living Color Landscape. Councilor Vlcek informs the group that he will be working on  
  getting the striping done for the soccer season.  
 

ACTION ITEM: NA 
 
 



City Council Minutes August 11, 2015 Page 4 of 10 
  

g) City Recorder 
• Recorder report is routine Richardson informs Council that the job descriptions have 

been completed for the Administrative Department and working towards finishing the 
Public Works Department next. Richardson also informs Council that we need to 
schedule performance reviews. Councilor Sallee requests a copy of the Emergency 
Response Plan and wants to begin including a section of it each month in the council 
packets so everyone is familiar with the document.  
 
Council discussed nothing at this time.  
 
ACTION ITEM: Get a copy of EOP to Councilor Sallee.  
 

h) City Attorney 
• City Attorney report Koho informs the council that Mr. Bixler has withdrawn his 

application to combine his lots back into one legal lot rather than the 4 lots currently. 
Mr. Sills appeal hearing has been rescheduled until the September meeting. The Eddy 
property has a current deal in place and the purchaser wants to make a settlement offer 
to the city and have a non-encumbered title along with a timeline of when the property 
will be cleaned up.  
 
Council discussed the need for more information regarding the Eddy property. Also we 
need to get moving forward on the falling down house on HWY 99E the Ranu property I 
believe.  
 
ACTION ITEM: Continue on both properties Eddy and Ranu.  

 
7. PUBLIC HEARING, Opens at 7:14 PM 

 
a) Discussion and or Action on Zone Change (ZC-2015-01), City Attorney Koho reads the staff 

report which is very clear and staff report outlines 4 options for you.  
 

CITY OF AURORA CITY COUNCIL  
STAFF REPORT 

 
FILE NUMBER: ZC-2015-01 and CPMA-2015-01 
HEARING DATE:    August 11, 2015   
 
APPLICANT: City of Aurora 
 
OWNER: Timothy & Susan Corcoran, PO Box 73, Aurora, OR 97002  
 
REQUEST:  Zone Change and Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment  
 
SITE LOCATION: 21348 Hwy 99E, Aurora, OR 97002 

Property ID R98010, Map 041.W.12BA, Tax Lot 3000  
 
SITE SIZE:  0.166 acres 
 



City Council Minutes August 11, 2015 Page 5 of 10 
  

ZONING: Low Density Residential (R-1) Zone with Historic Residential (HR) 
Overlay  

 
COMP PLAN DESIG: Low Density Residential with Historic District Overlay 
 
CRITERIA: Aurora Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter IX. Policies 
 
Aurora Municipal Code (AMC) 
Chapter 16.76 Procedures for Decision Making – Quasi-Judicial  
 

ENCLOSURES: Exhibit A: Assessor Map 
      
 
 
I. REQUEST 
 
Applicant has requested the following two actions:   
1)  Zone change from Low Density Residential (R-1) with Historic Residential (HR) Overlay to Commercial 

(C) with Historic Commercial (HC) Overlay; and 
2)  Comprehensive Plan map amendment from Low Density Residential with Historic District to 

Commercial with Historic District 
 
 
II. PROCEDURE 
 
Procedures and standards dictating review of map amendments and zone changes are provided in AMC 
16.80.30. Quasi-judicial amendments shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in Chapter 
16.76. The Council shall decide the applications on the record. A quasi-judicial application may be 
approved, approved with conditions or denied. 
 
The decision on an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Map must precede the decision on a proposed 
zone change. Plan map amendments are not subject to the one hundred twenty (120) day decision making 
period prescribed by state law and such amendments may involve complex issues. The applicant 
requested consolidation of the plan map amendment and a zone change and waived the one hundred 
twenty (120) day time limit prescribed by state law for zone change and permit applications. 
 
Notice of the August 4, 2015 Planning Commission meeting and August 11th City Council hearings was 
provided on July 23, 2015 to the applicant, owners of the subject property, and all owners of property 
within 200’ of the subject property. Notice was also mailed to the Department of Land Conservation and 
Development and Aurora Public Works and published in the Canby Herald on July 15, 2015.  
 
Appeals are governed by AMC 16.76.260 and 16.78.120 and 16.80.030.   
 
 
III. CRITERIA AND FINDINGS 
 
Subchapter 16.80.030 provides the criteria for amendments to the Code, Comprehensive Plan, and 
Maps and states quasi-judicial amendments shall be in accordance with the procedures set forth in 
16.76. The City Council shall decide the applications on the record. A quasi-judicial application may 
be approved, approved with conditions, or denied. 



City Council Minutes August 11, 2015 Page 6 of 10 
  

 
FINDINGS: Aurora Municipal Code (AMC) sections 16.76.020 through 16.76.110 outline the 
procedures for the application process, noticing requirements, approval authorities, and hearings 
procedures. Noticing requirements are summarized above. The Planning Commission makes a 
recommendation to the City Council for final decision. Staff and the Planning Commission found the 
criteria under 16.76.020 through 16.76.110 are met. 

 
Aurora Comprehensive Plan, Chapter IX. POLICIES 
J. Historic Resource Policies (Goal 5) 
Objective: Protect the community's historic character and sense of identity by conserving buildings 
and sites of historic significance and increasing the zone of control to include more of the original 
colony property. 

 
FINDINGS: Staff and the Planning Commission found the proposed rezone will maintain the historic 
overlay zone and, based upon input from the property owner, will conserve buildings and properties of 
historic significance.  
 

K.  Economic Policies (Goal 9) 
2.  The City will encourage the preservation and enhancement of the community's historic character. 
 

FINDINGS:  The proposed rezone and map amendment affects property located in the City’s historic 
district. The zone change and map amendment will allow a dilapidated residential structure in the historic 
district to be refurbished and used for commercial purposes. On February 26, 2015, the Historic Review 
Board (HRB) heard and subsequently approved the property owners request to refurbish the roof, paint, 
windows, foundation, and doors of the existing structure. Based on the proposed use and the approval of 
the HRB, Staff and the Planning Commission found the request will encourage the preservation and 
enhancement of the community’s historic character. 
 

3.  The City will promote the retention and expansion of existing business activities while promoting 
the recruitment of new businesses. 

 
FINDINGS:  The property abutting the subject property to the north currently houses the Aurora Family 
Health Clinic. The proposed rezone and map amendment will allow the health clinic to expand into the 
subject property. Preliminary renderings submitted by the property owner show an expansion and remodel 
of the existing residential structure on the subject property for the purpose of accommodating the Aurora 
Family Health Clinic. Upon approval of a rezone and map amendment, the construction and change in use 
would be subject to Site Development Review. Staff and the Planning Commission found the request will 
promote retention and expansion of existing business activities. 
 
Aurora Municipal Code (AMC) 
16.76 Procedures for Decision Making – Quasi-Judicial 
 
16.76.120 Standards for the decision. An application for quasi-judicial comprehensive plan map 
amendment or zone change shall be based on proof by the applicant that the application fully complies 
with: 
 

1.  Applicable policies of the city comprehensive plan and map designation; and 
 
FINDINGS:  Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies are addressed above. Staff and the Planning 
Commission found the request complies with applicable Comprehensive Plan policies and this criteria is 
met. 



City Council Minutes August 11, 2015 Page 7 of 10 
  

 
2.  The relevant approval standards found in the applicable chapter(s) of this title, the public 

works design standards, and other applicable implementing ordinances, including but not 
limited to, the Aurora Design Review Guidelines for Historic District Properties. 

 
FINDINGS:  As stated above, on February 26, 2015, the HRB heard and subsequently approved the 
property owners request to refurbish the roof, paint, windows, foundation, and doors of the existing 
structure. Upon approval of the proposed rezone and map amendment, Historic District overlays will 
continue to apply, and any commercial development will be subject to Site Development Review and the 
Public Works Design Standards. Staff and the Planning Commission found the request met this criteria. 

 
3.  In the case of a quasi-judicial comprehensive plan map amendment or zone change, the 

change will not adversely affect the health, safety and welfare of the community. 
 
FINDINGS:  The proposed rezone and map amendment will result in Commercial (C) zoning of the 
subject property with Historic Commercial Overlay (HCO) zone, which will allow the dilapidated 
dwelling currently on site to be refurbished and used for commercial purposes. The redevelopment of a 
vacant and dilapidated structure will remove a potential safety and welfare hazard. Furthermore, 
preliminary plans for the subject property include an expansion of the neighboring Aurora Family Health 
Clinic.  Notice of the proposed zone change and comprehensive plan map amendment was also mailed to 
property owners within 200 feet and provided to Aurora Public Works. At the writing on this staff report, 
Staff had not received written testimony regarding the subject application. Oral testimony was not 
received at the Planning Commission meeting. Consequently, Staff and the Planning Commission found 
the request would not adversely affect the health, safety, and welfare of the community. Staff and the 
Planning Commission found this criteria was met.  
 
B. Consideration may also be given to: 
  1. Proof of a substantial change in circumstances or a mistake in the comprehensive plan or 
zoning map as it relates to the property which is the subject of the development application; and 
  2. Factual oral testimony or written statements from the parties, other persons and other 
governmental agencies relevant to the existing conditions, other applicable standards and criteria, 
possible negative or positive attributes of the proposal or factors in subsections (A) or (B)(1) of this 
section. 
 
FINDINGS: Properties to the north, south and west of the subject property are zone Commercial (C) with 
a Historic Commercial Overlay (HCO) zone. The property owner and Staff were able to locate 
documentation regarding the property zoning which conflicts with the current Residential zone shown on 
City maps and County assessor records. Staff believes that, at some point in the past during a map update, 
the City inadvertently mislabeled the subject property as Residential with a Historic Residential Overlay 
as previous land use applications for the subject property have identified it as Commercial with no 
evidence that the property was rezoned to Residential. The Planning Commission found this criteria was 
met. 
 
 
IV. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Based on the findings in the staff report, Staff and the Planning Commission recommends that the City 
Council approve the request, subject to the following conditions of approval: 



City Council Minutes August 11, 2015 Page 8 of 10 
  

 
1) Future development shall occur in accordance with plans approved by the city.  
 
2) Future development shall comply with all City of Aurora and State of Oregon development, 

building and fire codes. 
  
 
V. CITY COUNCIL OPTIONS / SAMPLE MOTIONS 

 
1) Approve the request for Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment and Zone Change (File ZC-2015-

01 and CPMA-2015-01) and adopt the findings and conditions contained in the Staff Report. 
 

2) Approve the request for Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment and Zone Change (File ZC-2015-
01 and CPMA-2015-01), with findings/conditions as amended by the City Council (stating 
revised findings/conditions). 

 
3) Deny the request for Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment and Zone Change (File ZC-2015-01 

and CPMA-2015-01), with amended findings that the request does not meet the applicable 
approval criteria. 

 
4) Continue the hearing (to a date and time certain) if additional information is needed to determine 

whether applicable standards and criteria are sufficiently addressed. 
 
 Hearing Closes at 7:18 
 
 Council briefly discusses the fact that this is basically a clerical error and is now fixing that 
 error.  
 
 A motion is made by Councilor Vlcek to approve the Zone Change App ZC-2015-01_as per option 
 1 to become zone commercial and is seconded by Councilor Sahlin. Passed by All.  
 
  

8. ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 
 
a) Discussion and or Action on Resolution Number 701 to Amend the Current Business License 

Fees and Amend Resolution Number 642.  
 
 Motion to approve Resolution Number 701 and add a fee for MMD Applications is made by 
 Councilor Sahlin and is seconded by Councilor Vlcek. Passed by All.  

 
9. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a) Discussion and or Action on Appeal Notice (2015-01) Historic District Overlay, is rescheduled 

to the September meeting.  
b) Discussion and or Action on Planning Commission Recommendation to Appoint Aaron 

Ensign to fill the vacant Commission seat. 
Motion is made by Councilor Vlcek to appoint Aaron Ensign to the Aurora Planning 
Commission and is seconded by Councilor Sallee. Passed by All.  



City Council Minutes August 11, 2015 Page 9 of 10 
  

c) Discussion and or Action on Grove Mueller and Swank Contract for Audit Services.  
Motion is made to approve the Contract with Grove Mueller and Swank for the Audit 
Services for the year. Passed by All.  
 

d) Discussion and or Action on City Engineer John Ashley Waste Water Engineering Services 
Report. Councilor Vlcek asks why does it take so long to complete and why charge for the 
document copies. Councilor Sahlin explains he believes because they need to monitor flows 
over a period of time is why it takes so long and it is normal to charge for  the document 
because they do all the research involved it really is there document. Council would like to 
talk with Ashley at the next meeting before they approve the services report.  
 

e) Discussion and or Action on Better Ways of Council Communication. Councilor Sallee 
wanted this placed on the agenda and felt that there needed to be better communication 
between the boards. She felt the Council needed to be informed more of issues and 
concerns. City Recorder Richardson informs the council that the minutes in your packets 
inform the Council of discussion at other boards. As far as items before staff Richardson lets  
Council know that if it is not discussed in open meeting it will not be on the minutes. Sallee 
is concerned about the length of time it has taken for the Corcoran project and again 
Richardson informs the Council that all of the relevant procedures were followed in this case 
and had staff had all the information the application would have been deemed complete 
therefore along with noticing requirements everything was handled as it should have been.  
Sallee also had a few concerns regarding employee communications and concerns that 
come up and the process for that as well. Koho explains that each member of Council should 
be willing to assist employees as needed as I believe you have been. Koho maybe it’s time to 
start looking into a different form of government your almost large enough for a City 
Manager.  
 
Council is informed that Ashley is continuing work on the Storm Water Master Plan.    

 
10. OLD BUSINESS  

 
a) NA 
 
  

11. ADJOURN,  
 

 Mayor Graupp adjourned the August 11, 2015 Council Meeting at 9:05 PM.  
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Bill Graupp, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
Kelly Richardson, CMC 
City Recorder 





























City Council 
Public Works Activity Report 

September 2015 
 

Waste Water: 
 Working on new irrigation system. Sludge pipe and tanks are on site. Tanks are positioned 
on slab. 
 TMDL report is completed and will be submitted after work shop from DEQ. ted. This report 
is normally due in September but has been extended because of the work shop . I have 
been in contact with the agency and will be attending in September 17 to confirm the 
document . 
 
 I&I reports is due February First of each year. 2014 report mailed 1/8/2015 
  
Flow meter calibration report is due before December 31 of each year. This is done in April 
9, 2015. Cert letter will be sent this month 
  
Water: Consumption has been ranging between 200,000-260,000 gallons per day and the 
water system is maintaining the demands. 
 
CCR report was put together and has been sent on the last  billing cycle. 
 Cross connection update . 2014 Report has been filed 
Back Flow: 
108 devices have been tested and 27devices have been remored this year 
Streets:  
Routine operation and maintenance.  Clearing catch basin of debris. Graveled roads are 
being checked for pot holes and repaired as needed. 
 
Park: Risk assessment bids for the Fir trees have been asked for again.$ trees have been 
removed in the tree grove that were deemed hazardous. Logs for firewood was moved to 
Liberty street and is now gone to residents. 4 more will be removed in September that the 
City staff will do, these are smaller trees and not close to any structures or other hazards. 
 
Notice for Council  
Water Plant repairs. estimated dated 8/8/15 
Wastewater treatment (ongoing now) 
Administration                     
Public Works scheduling and planning for staff. 
Maintaining  Budget for 2015-2016 
 
Respectfully: Darrel Lockard 
 
Public works project list 
Irrigation for WWTP summer discharge(in progress) 
Sludge tank (in position) 
Stop Lines 
Prep second irrigation field (mowed, some repairs need to be made ie connection points need modifications) 



Backflow is ongoing 
 
 



1 

 

City Recorder Report 

Memo 
To: City Council 

From: Kelly Richardson 

CC: None 

Date: 9/3/2015 

Re: Recorders Report Month of August 2015 report 

Activities and ongoing projects are as follows: 

 Ongoing secretarial duties for the City Council and Planning and Historic Review Board, along 
with attending the meetings once a month.  

 Working closely with Historic Review Board on guideline updates and changes.  

 Working closely with Patrick Harris, Colony Museum and Typist Aleasha Garber on the 
CLG grant.  

 Attending Conference Committee And Records Committee Meetings 

 Records Request update  

 O pending request  

 Ongoing needs of the City, discussion items.  

 Updating Planning and Zoning Files and Forms/Checklists ONGOING 

 Gather information for website updates, continued to work on this.  

 Working on various punch list items requested. (most items on hold) 

 Continued work almost daily on Backflow Device Status.  

 Finished City Recorders, Finance Officers, Utility Worker and Administrative Assistant Job 
descriptions just need to finish Public Works Superintendent now.  

 Did interviews for the Administrative Assistant position and from that selected our candidate. 
Rhonda Rae was the successful candidate she started August 31. So far all is going well with 
her training and her schedule is 9-2 Monday-Thursday.   

 We have many open permits and currently there are 5 new homes being built.  



 Page 2 
 

 We have begun the very long process of our V7 migration for Springbrook this should be 
completed in February of 2016. 

 Webber consulting has begun the process of updating our server and this should be completed 
by end of 2015 or before.  

 New heating and air conditioning units have been installed and they are so very nice.   



Resolution Number 702 
A Resolution Establishing Policy on Employee Health Insurance 
City Council Meeting September 08, 2015 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 702 
 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING POLICY ON EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE 
AMENDING RESOLUTION NUMBER 651.  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Aurora values the contributions made by its employees and 
wants to provide health insurance benefits to the greatest extent possible; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to have a steady and predictable rate of 
contribution to health insurance costs to assist the employee, the taxpayers, and the budget; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council needs to keep up with the continually changing health 
insurance needs of its employees.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
AURORA THAT: 
 

It shall be the policy of the City of Aurora to provide health care insurance to its full-
time employees as follows: 

 
• Resolution 651 is amended as follows with the addition of and include 

employee + children;  
• Employees shall pay the first $50 on a monthly basis of the cost of health 

insurance which covers the employee only and the City shall pay the remainder 
of the cost; 

• Employees shall pay the first $150 on a monthly basis of the cost of health 
insurance which covers the employee and spouse only and the City shall pay 
the remainder of the cost; 

• Employees shall pay the first $150 on a monthly basis of the cost of health 
insurance which covers the employee and one child only and the City shall pay 
the remainder of the cost; 

• Employees shall pay the first $200 on a monthly basis of the cost of health 
insurance which covers the employee and more than one child only and the 
City shall pay the remainder of the cost; 

• Employees shall pay the first $250 on a monthly basis of the cost of health 
insurance which covers the employee and family and the City shall pay the 
remainder of the cost; and  

• These contribution levels are subject to review by the Council every six months. 
 
/       /        /        / 
 
 
/       /        /        / 
 



Resolution Number 702 
A Resolution Establishing Policy on Employee Health Insurance 
City Council Meeting September 08, 2015 

 
 
 
 

 ADOPTED by the Aurora City Council at the regular City Council meeting held on Tuesday, 
September 08, 2015.  This resolution is effective immediately.  
 
 Dated this ____ day of September, 2015. 
    
       ATTEST 
         _______________________________ 
Bill Graupp, Mayor      Kelly Richardson, CMC 
         City Recorder 
 
     





TASK ORDER NO. CE-15-1  WASTEWATER FACILITIES PLAN UPDATE 
City of Aurora, Oregon and Ashley Engineering Design, P.C   

Page 1 of 4 

TASK ORDER NO. CE-15-1 
TO THE AGREEMENT TO FURNISH PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES  

TO THE CITY OF AURORA, OREGON 

 

WASTEWATER FACILITIES PLAN UPDATE 

 

This Task Order is issued by the City of Aurora, Oregon and accepted by Ashley Engineering Design, P.C. 

pursuant to the mutual promises, covenants and conditions contained in the Agreement between 

Ashley Engineering Design, P.C., hereinafter called CONSULTANT and the City of Aurora, Oregon, 

hereinafter called CITY, to furnish Professional Engineering Services, dated June 5, 2009.  All conditions 

of the Agreement apply to this Task Order unless specifically modified below. 

 

This Task Order is for the preparation of a Wastewater Facilities Plan Update and will be prepared with 

the assistance of Keller Associates, Inc (707 13th Street, Suite 280, Salem, Oregon 97301, (503) 364-

2002), hereinafter called SUBCONSULTANT.  The facilities plan will address existing and future needs for 

the wastewater treatment.  

ARTICLE 1 - SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The project services provided by CONSULTANT and SUBCONSULTANT are summarized below.  The 

SUBCONSULTANTS’ Scope of Services and Fee for the project is set forth in the Agreement between 

CONSULTANT and SUBCONSULTANT and their associated Task Order, which by this reference are 

incorporated herein.  Professional engineering services for the project will be performed in a manner 

consistent with the degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession 

currently practicing under similar circumstances within and around the CITY.   

WORK BY CONSULTANT 

Overall management of the project will be performed by CONSULTANT.  The Scope of Services for 

CONSULTANT shall consist of the following Task: 

 

• TASK 1 – OVERALL PROJECT MANAGEMENT.  The purpose of this Task is for the overall 

management of the project.  CONSULTANT will administer the SUBCONSULTANT Agreement 

throughout the project, participate in regular communications with the CITY, plan and attend 

review meetings/workshops, and coordinate project submittals with CITY.  CONSULTANT will also 

monitor and track the project budget and schedule, assist with establishing the planning criteria, 

coordinate the activities being performed, and review and submit monthly invoices to the CITY.  

 

DELIVERABLES / MEETINGS 

• Attend a Project Kickoff meeting. 

• Attend two Technical Review Committee meetings. 

• Attend one City Council Workshop. 

• Prepare and submit monthly invoices. 



TASK ORDER NO. CE-15-1  WASTEWATER FACILITIES PLAN UPDATE 
City of Aurora, Oregon and Ashley Engineering Design, P.C   

Page 2 of 4 

WORK BY SUBCONSULTANT 

The SUBCONSULTANT’s Scope and Budget are included as Attachment A to this Task Order.  A list of the 

SUBCONSULTANT’S Tasks to be performed is shown below and further described in Attachment A. 

 

• Task 1: Project Management 

• Task 2: Project Planning 

• Task 3: Existing Wastewater Treatment Facilities 

• Task 4: Need For Project 

• Task 5: Alternatives Considered 

• Task 6: Selection Of An Alternative 

• Task 7: Proposed Project 

• Task 8: Report Documentation 

ARTICLE II – ASSUMPTIONS 

The assumptions presented in Attachment A have been made part of this Task Order. 

ARTICLE III – EXCLUSIONS 

Any work items that have not been described and defined in the above Tasks and in Attachment A are 

not part of this Task Order.  The following services are specifically excluded: 

 

• Sewer Collection System or Airport 

Annexation Impacts 

• Environmental, Wetlands, Noise, 

Archaeology, Soils/Geotechnical, 

Structural, Etc. 

• Floodplain/Floodway Studies 

• Land Use/Zoning/Planning 

• Engineering Designs, Surveying, and/or 

Construction Services 

• Easements, Legal Descriptions, and/or 

Right-of-way 

• Financial Planning, Utility Fees/Rate 

Studies, and/or System Development 

Charges 

• Computer Modeling, Water Quality, 

Testing, and/or Monitoring 

• Permitting, City and/or Agency Fees 

• Other Workshops/Public Outreach or 

Presentations 

• Other Reports/Studies/Master Plans

ARTICLE IV – SCHEDULE 

Professional engineering services will proceed upon execution of this signed Task Order.  It is anticipated 

that the preparation of the Wastewater Facilities Plan Study will take approximately 12-18 months to 

complete, not including CITY and/or other agency review times.   

 

 

 

 

 



TASK ORDER NO. CE-15-1  WASTEWATER FACILITIES PLAN UPDATE 
City of Aurora, Oregon and Ashley Engineering Design, P.C   

Page 3 of 4 

ARTICLE V – COMPENSATION 

Compensation will be on a fixed price-lump sum basis and invoiced monthly based upon a percentage of 

completion.  CONSULTANT will apply the standard markup to the SUBCONSULTANT billings to cover the 

additional insurance requirements and processing of SUBCONSULTANT costs to the CITY. 

FIXED PRICE-LUMP SUM COMPENSATION 

• CONSULTANT project services and markup -  $ 9,600.00 

• SUBCONSULTANT (Keller Associates, Inc.) -  $ 58,900.00 

  Total Compensation -  $ 68,500.00 

OPTIONAL TASKS 

• SUBCONSULTANT Optional Task 3 (if included) per Attachment A -  $ 1,700.00 

• SUBCONSULTANT Optional Task 7 (if included) per Attachment A -  $ 2,100.00 

 

Any work authorized by the CITY (Mayor or appropriate staff) that is outside the Scope of Services 

contained herein, will be billed at the standard hourly rates for CONSULTANT shown in Table 1, and the 

standard hourly rates for SUBCONSULTANT.  Any additional items specifically requested by the CITY such 

as additional prints, etc., will be over and above the fixed-price and will be invoiced in accordance with 

the Direct Costs and Expenses identified in Table 2. 

TABLE 1 

CONSULTANT’S HOURLY LABOR RATE SCHEDULE 

CLASSIFICATION RATE 

Project Manager/Engineer $85 

Project CAD Technician $65 

Administrative Assistant - Office/Clerical $45 

Notes: 

1. See Table 2 below for project related Direct Costs and Expenses. 

2. An additional premium of 25% will be added to the above rates for Expert Witness and Testimony Services. 

3. These hourly rates are effective through December 31, 2015.  A new labor rate schedule will be negotiated for any additional work 

performed in 2016. 

TABLE 2 

CONSULTANT’S DIRECT COSTS AND EXPENSES 

DESCRIPTION COST 

Additional Printing, Mylars, Reproduction/Copying, etc. At cost plus 10 percent 

Agency Fees – Applications, Permits, Reviews, etc. At cost 

Postage and Freight At cost 

Miscellaneous Project Expenses At cost 

Additional Outside Services, Subconsultants, etc. At cost plus 10 percent 

 



TASK ORDER NO. CE-15-1  WASTEWATER FACILITIES PLAN UPDATE 
City of Aurora, Oregon and Ashley Engineering Design, P.C   

Page 4 of 4 

ARTICLE VI – OTHER PROVISIONS 

The period of services for this Task Order will be from the date this Task Order is executed by the CITY 

until project completion, or until terminated by the CONSULTANT or CITY under the provisions of the 

Agreement.   

 

If the performance of services hereunder requires CONSULTANT and SUBCONSULTANT to rely on 

information provided by other parties, CONSULTANT and SUBCONSULTANT shall not be liable to 

independently verify the validity, completeness, or accuracy of such information unless otherwise 

expressly engaged to do so in writing by the CITY as Additional Services.  Compensation for performing 

any Additional Services will be pursuant to a mutually agreed upon Addendum to this Task Order.   

 

All documents prepared or furnished by CONSULTANT and SUBCONSULTANT are instruments of service, 

and CONSULTANT and SUBCONSULTANT shall retain ownership including the copyright and the right of 

reuse in such documents.  CITY shall have a limited license to use the documents, agrees to obtain prior 

written agreement for any reuse or modifications of the instruments of service, and understands that 

any unauthorized use of the instruments of service shall be at the CITY’s sole risk and without liability to 

the CONSULTANT and SUBCONSULTANT. 

 

 All other terms and conditions of the Agreement between CONSULTANT and CITY apply to this Task 

Order. 

ARTICLE VII – AUTHORIZATION 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, duly authorized representatives of the parties have executed this Task Order 

with the effective date, the year and day last written below. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSULTANT 

Ashley Engineering Design, P.C. 

 CITY 

City of Aurora, Oregon 

By:  

 

 

By: 

 

 

 

 

John Ashley, P.E., President 

(OR60132PE) 

 

 

 

Mayor  

 

Date: 

  

 

Date: 

 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

ATTACHMENT A 
for  

Wastewater Facilities Planning Study 
City of Aurora 

Consultant Project No.: 215066 
 

Scope and Budget 

Project Description 
This Wastewater Facilities Plan Update is funded by City of Aurora funds.  The facilities plan will address 
existing and future needs for the wastewater treatment and disposal systems.  The collection system will 
not be included in this facilities plan, but will be evaluated later under a separate contract.  The plan will 
look at a 20-year timeframe and address the regulatory requirements for facilities planning studies, 
following the “Guidelines for Preparing Wastewater Planning Documents and Environmental Reports for 
Public Utilities” dated May 2013. 

The primary drivers for completing the Wastewater Facilities Plan are to evaluate the existing treatment 
process and make recommendations for disposal options. 

The following engineering services will be provided by Keller Associates, Inc. (Consultant) to John Ashley 
(Client), City Engineer for the City of Aurora (Owner). 

1.0 Task 1 – Project Management 

CONSULTANT Services 

1. CONSULTANT and CLIENT/OWNER staff will meet to initiate the project.  The objectives of this 
kickoff meeting will include reviewing the project constraints (scope, budget, and schedule), review 
available information, resources, planning criteria, processes, and OWNER objectives/goals.  Data 
needs and coordination efforts will also be reviewed.  It is anticipated that a field visit will be 
coordinated with this meeting.  Kickoff meeting will include Oregon DEQ, refer to page 6 of the 
above mentioned 2013 guidelines. 

2. Prepare for and attend two additional Technical Review Committee (TRC) meetings.  TRC 
meetings will involve representatives from CONSULTANT, City staff, and other stakeholders that 
the City chooses to involve in the planning effort.  The CONSULTANT will coordinate these 
meetings through the City’s Engineer and Public Works Superintendent.  The purpose of these 
meetings will be to review preliminary findings, improvement alternatives, and draft facilities 
planning recommendations. 

3. Prepare a request for information and review data provided by the City.  Provide subsequent 
requests for information (if needed) to clarify data and complete analysis. 

4. Prepare for and attend one city council workshop. 

5. Prepare and submit monthly invoices. 

6. Prepare and submit monthly progress reports to track progress and inform the City of items needed 
to keep the project on schedule. 

  



 

2 | P a g e  
 

OWNER Responsibilities 

1. Provide information in request for information.  All data should be provided within 30 days of the 
first request for information. 

2. City to invite stakeholders to the TRC meetings.   

3. Provide facilities to meet in for TRC and public meetings. 

Assumptions 

1. This scope does not include any public outreach efforts for the consultant. 

Deliverables 

1. Requests for information. 

2. Meeting agendas and meeting minutes. 

3. Monthly invoices. 

4. Monthly progress reports. 

5. Council workshop materials. 

2.0 Task 2 – Project Planning 

CONSULTANT Services 

1. Location - Develop figures to establish the project planning area.  The figures will include legal, 
natural boundaries, and a topographical map of the service area. 

2. Environmental Resources Present - Develop figures and narrative to describe environmental 
resources present in the project planning area (i.e. wetlands inventory, FEMA flood mapping). 

3. Population Trends – Document U.S. Census or other population data (Portland State) for the 
previous 20 years and document population projections for the 20 year project planning period. 

4. Community Engagement – Summarize how the community was engaged for the planning process. 

OWNER Responsibilities 

1. Provide the documents covered in the request for information. 

2. Provide the following documents: 

a. Current water master plan and water management and conservation plan. 

b. Previous wastewater facilities planning study (1996). 

c. Current system development charge (SDC) and rate studies, and any economic studies. 

d. Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) Documents. 

e. Existing CAD / GIS electronic files for city utilities and planning documents. 

f. Other pertinent planning documents. 

3. Provide input on growth projections and the distribution and phasing of new residential and non-
residential growth. 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

Assumptions 

1. No field observations will be completed, including but not limited to wetland delineation 
(investigation), biological assessment, and/or cultural resource survey. 

2. The environmental work performed under this task does not constitute an environmental review nor 
does it include an Environmental Information Document (EID). 

3. The study area will coincide with the current Urban Growth Boundary. 

4. This study will not evaluate the potential affects to the sanitary sewer system if the airport is 
annexed. 

Deliverables 

1. Draft and final write-ups documenting project planning per ODEQ WWFPS recommended outline. 

3.0 Task 3 – Existing Wastewater Treatment Facilities 

CONSULTANT Services 

1. Complete a site tour of the effluent pump station and the treatment facility to review conditions of 
existing assets, interview City staff, and document observed/known problems. Complete pump tests 
at effluent pumping facility to evaluate current pump performance. 

2. (Optional)  Complete a site tour of the influent pump station review conditions of existing assets, 
interview City staff, and document observed/known problems. Complete pump tests at influent 
pumping facility to evaluate current pump performance.  

3. Review pump run time data and flow meter records to assess existing capacity limitations (if any). 

4. Location - Develop map and schematic process layout of the existing treatment plant and 
influent/effluent lift stations.  The figures will include legal, natural boundaries, and a topographical 
map of the service area. 

5. History - Document wastewater treatment plant history and system description to reflect current 
flow and water quality data, recent discharge monitoring records (DMRs), plant improvements that 
have been completed since the previous planning study, current condition of plant equipment and 
facilities, and current operation practices. 

6. Conditions of Existing Facilities – Document present conditions; suitability for continued use; 
adequacy of current facilities and their treatment, storage, and disposal capabilities.  Document 
capacities of each component.  Document regulatory requirements including anticipated NPDES 
permit requirements for the City as well as address changes in land application and reuse 
regulations.  Review and document potential impacts of the Pudding River TMDL.  Summarize 
overall current energy consumption. 

7. Financial Status of any Existing Facilities – Document current rate schedules, annual O&M costs, 
other capital improvement programs, and table of users by monthly usage categories for the 
previous fiscal year.  Document existing debts and required reserve accounts. 

8. Water/Energy/Waste Audits – Document any water, energy, and/or waste audits previously 
conducted and the outcomes. 

OWNER Responsibilities 

1. Provide access to the facilities and available documents. 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

2. Provide electronic (excel) copies of DMRs for previous 5 years.  Provide available SCADA data at 
the plant and lift stations. 

3. Provide recorded pump run times on a daily basis in electronic (excel) format. 

4. Provide any water, energy, and/or waste audits previously conducted. 

5. The City will provide current rates and summary of revenue and operation and maintenance data. 

Assumptions 

1. Existing CAD maps or as-builts will provide all data necessary to evaluate treatment process.  No 
additional field work or surveying will be required. 

Deliverables 

1. Draft and final write-up on existing wastewater treatment facilities per ODEQ WWFPS 
recommended outline. 

4.0 Task 4 – Need for Project 

CONSULTANT Services 

1. Health Sanitation and Security – Document concerns and include relevant regulations and 
correspondence from/to federal and state regulatory agencies. 

2. Aging Infrastructure – Summarize concerns and highlight those with the potential for the greatest 
impact.  Document inflow and infiltration, treatment or storage needs, management adequacy, 
inefficient designs, and other issues.  Summarize any safety concerns. 

3. Reasonable Growth - Determine system flows from influent flow data at the treatment plant and 
available lift station metering/pump run-time data.  Review NOAA precipitation records to determine 
5-year and 10-year design storms.  Analyze the existing wastewater composition.  Summarize 
influent flow and water quality data and provide the data in an appendix to the facility plan.  
Document the reasonable growth capacity that is necessary to meet needs during the planning 
period. 

OWNER Responsibilities 

1. Provide known correspondence from federal and state regulatory agencies regarding violations or 
concerns related to wastewater treatment and disposal. 

2. Complete any additional water quality testing that may be requested by the Consultant. 

Assumptions 

1. Without the ability to perform continuous flow monitoring, peak instantaneous (peak hour) flows will 
be determined by the CONSULTANT using peaking factors. 

2. Inflow and infiltration will be summarized based on flow patterns relative to historic daily rainfall 
totals as recorded on the DMR’s. 

Deliverables 

1. Draft and final write-ups on need for project per ODEQ WWFPS recommended outline. 

2. Analysis of flow data consistent with ODEQ guidelines. 



 

5 | P a g e  
 

 

5.0 Task 5 – Alternatives Considered 

CONSULTANT Services 

1. Develop evaluation criteria. 

2. Existing and future conditions will be measured against the established evaluation criteria. 

3. Summarize any special requirements (if any) established in the City’s land use and comprehensive 
plans. 

4. Develop planning level design criteria for the wastewater treatment plant based on projected flows, 
loads, and permit requirements.  Design criteria will include the design flow (annual average, 
maximum month, and instantaneous peak), influent BOD, TSS, and nitrogen concentrations and 
loads, summer and winter temperatures, influent alkalinity, effluent BOD and TSS concentrations 
and loads, effluent ammonia concentrations, BOD and TSS removal efficiency, effluent pH range, 
effluent E. coli and total coliform requirements, and effluent total chlorine residual.  Consideration 
will be given to seasonal treatment requirements for winter discharge to the Pudding River and 
summer land application. 

5. Evaluate process options to improve treatment to meet the planning criteria established for this 
study. 

6. Evaluate disinfection and disposal options. 

7. City staff report that a reuse plan is currently being developed by the DEQ.  This task will document 
the DEQ’s progress and anticipated results of the reuse plan.  

8. Develop alternatives and summarize including environmental impacts, land requirements, potential 
construction problems, and sustainability considerations (i.e. water and energy efficiency, green 
infrastructure). 

9. Establish cost estimating methodology to reflect both local and current conditions. 

10. Prepare planning level capital and operating and maintenance (O&M) cost estimates for each 
option.  Develop annual costs for each viable alternative. 

OWNER Responsibilities 

1. Provide input on evaluation and design criteria. 

2. Provide input on improvement alternatives. 

Assumptions 

1. No mixing zone analysis will be provided. 

2. The reuse plan is not included in this scope of work, as well as analysis for required acreage, how 
to obtain the land, analysis of soil and groundwater conditions, analysis of sprinkler distribution 
system and irrigation pump station.  These services can be completed as additional services. 

3. Evaluation of alternatives will be limited to two viable options identified with City input. 



 

6 | P a g e  
 

Deliverables 

1. Draft and final write-ups on alternatives considered, incorporated per ODEQ WWFPS 
recommended outline. 

6.0 Task 6 – Selection of an Alternative 

CONSULTANT Services 

1. Perform life cycle cost analysis on the technically feasible alternatives 

2. Rank each treatment option for its treatment performance.  Assist the City in identifying the 
apparent best alternative. 

3. The ranking will include consideration for both life cycle cost s and non-monetary factors (i.e. triple 
bottom line analysis: financial, social, and environmental). 

OWNER Responsibilities 

1. Provide input on ranking criteria and process. 

Assumptions 
N/A 

Deliverables 

1. Draft and final write-ups of selection of an alternative, incorporated per ODEQ WWFPS 
recommended outline. 

7.0 Task 7 – Proposed Project 

CONSULTANT Services 

1. Provide recommendation for which alternative should be implemented. 

2. Develop a more detailed description of recommended alternative including project schedule, permit 
requirements, sustainability considerations (if applicable), engineer’s opinion of probable cost, and 
effects on annual operating budget. 

3. Develop schematic for layout of recommended treatment process. 

4. Develop capital improvement plan outlining recommended improvements. 

5. Organize improvements by priority, and tied to population growth and the corresponding year. 

6. The Consultant will estimate the annualized cost to fund the treatment facility CIP and provide a 6-
year CIP to be used by the City’s financial consultant in evaluating rate impacts. 

7. Where identified capital improvements are anticipated to increase the City’s operations and 
maintenance costs, the Consultant will estimate the additional annual cost for these improvements. 

8. The Consultant will estimate the System Development Charge (SDC) eligibility for each identified 
capital improvement. 

9. (Optional) Provide separate summary sheets for each capital improvement. 



 

7 | P a g e  
 

OWNER Responsibilities 

1. The City will utilize a third party financial consultant to update their user rate and SDC analysis 
using data provided by the Consultant. 

2. Provide copies of recent bids.  Also review cost assumptions prepared by Consultant. 

Assumptions 
1. Consultant will not provide a full user rate and SDC study.  Consultant will provide the capital 

improvement plan that will be used by the City’s financial consultant to complete a user rate study 
and SDC study.  The City’s financial consultant will be responsible for making final 
recommendations for potential financing of improvements. 

Deliverables 
1. Capital improvement plan (tabular format, organized by priority). 

2. (Optional)  Separate summary sheets for each capital improvement. 

3. Estimate of SDC eligibility for each capital improvement. 

 

8.0 Task 8 – Report Documentation 

CONSULTANT Services 

1. Prepare a draft report for council, stakeholder, and agency review. 

2. Update report to reflect City review comments. 

3. Respond to agency comments. 

4. Prepare a final report in accordance with the requirements of Oregon Department of Environmental 
Quality to be adopted by the City. 

OWNER Responsibilities 

1. Pay for any agency review fees that may be required. 

Assumptions 
N/A 

Deliverables 
1. Three (3) draft copies of the report. 

2. Three (3) final copies of the report. 

3. One electronic copy (PDF) of the final report.  



 

8 | P a g e  
 

BUDGET 
The CONSULTANT will be compensated as summarized in the table below for all tasks described in 
tasks 1-8 of this attachment.  The following table summarizes how the budget amounts were determined.  
The optional items will be excluded from the scope and budget unless the written approval provided. 
 

Task  Amount 

Task 1:   Project Management  $7,800 

Task 2:   Project Planning  $2,300 

Task 3:   Existing Wastewater Treatment Facilities  $11,700 

        Optional Task Addition  $1,700 

Task 4:   Need for Project  $2,100 

Task 5:   Alternatives Considered  $19,900 

Task 6:   Selection of an Alternative  $1,800 

Task 7:   Proposed Project  $6,400 

        Optional Task Addition  $2,100 

Task 8:   Report Documentation  $6,900 

Total Consultant Budget $58,900 

Optional Tasks Total $3,800 

Total Consultant Budget Plus Optional Tasks $62,700 
 
 
 
 
  













Appeal-2015-01, SILLS  Page 1 of 3 

CITY OF AURORA CITY COUNCIL 
STAFF REPORT 

 
FILE NUMBER: Appeal-2015-01 
HEARING DATE:    August 11, 2015   
 
APPLICANT/OWNER: Michael Sills, 8415 SW Rogue Ln, Wilsonville, OR 
 
REQUEST:  Appeal of a July 8, 2015 decision of denial made by the Historic Review 

Board regarding the installation of vinyl windows in place of wood 
windows in a contributing structure.   

 
SITE LOCATION: 21328 Highway 99E NE, Aurora, OR 97002. Map 041W13BA, Tax Lot 

2800. 
 
ZONING: Commercial (C) with Historic Commercial Overlay (HCO)  
 
COMP PLAN DESIG: Commercial with Historic District Overlay 
 
CRITERIA: Aurora Municipal Code (AMC), Title 17.20.100 provides the procedures 

and criteria for reviewing an appeal of the Historic Review Board 
decision. 16.76 Procedures for Decision Making – Quasi-Judicial  
 

ENCLOSURES: Exhibit A: Assessor Map 
 Exhibit B: July 8, 2015 HRB Notice of Decision 

Exhibit C:  Appeal application materials 
Exhibit D: Resource #140, Aurora Colony Historic Resources 

Inventory (July 1985)  
Exhibit E: Additional Supporting Documentation  

 
 
I. REQUEST 
 
Appeal of a July 8, 2015 decision of denial made by the Historic Review Board regarding the installation 
of vinyl windows in place of wood windows in a contributing structure.   
 
II. PROCEDURE 
 
Procedures and standards dictating appeals of Historic Review Board decisions are governed by Aurora 
Municipal Code (AMC) 17.20.100. Submission of an appeal shall be made within the 14 day appeal 
period and shall include payment of required fees by any party to the decision before five p.m. on the last 
day of the appeal period and shall include the appellant’s specific grounds for the appeal. (17.20.100.D.3). 
 
AMC 17.20.100.F. states, “Upon appeal, notice shall be given to parties who are entitled to notice under 
Sections 17.20.060 and Section 17.20.090. Notice of the August 11th appeal hearing was provided on July 
31, 2015 to the appellant and Historic Review Board.   
 
 
III. CRITERIA AND FINDINGS 
 



Appeal-2015-01, SILLS  Page 2 of 3 

Subchapter 17.20.100.G. provides the criteria for appeal and states: The appellate authority shall 
affirm, reverse or modify the decision, which is the subject of the appeal. The decision shall be made in 
accordance with the time provisions of Section 17.20.040; or upon the written consent of all parties to 
extend the one hundred twenty (120) day limit, the appellate authority may remand the matter if it is 
satisfied that testimony or other evidence could not have been presented or was not available at the 
time of the initial decision.  
 
In deciding to remand the matter, the appellate authority shall consider and make findings and 
conclusions regarding: 
1. The prejudice to parties; 
2. The convenience or availability of evidence at the time of the initial hearing; 
3. The surprise to opposing parties; 
4. The date notice was given to other parties as to an attempt to admit; or 
5. The competency, relevancy and materiality of the proposed testimony or other evidence. 
 
FINDINGS: The subject property, Lot 2800 of Map 041W13BA, and commonly known as 21328 
Highway 99E NE, Aurora, OR 97002 is identified as Resource #140 on the Aurora Colony Historic 
Resources Inventory (July 1985)  which is adopted by the City Council and an element of the Aurora 
Comprehensive Plan (See Exhibit D). Therefore, the subject property is zoned Commercial with a 
Historic Commercial Overlay and is subject to both Title 16-Land Development and Title 17- Historic 
Preservation of the Aurora Municipal Code. 
 
Aurora Municipal Code (AMC) sections 17.40.190.A.1. states that for Contributing Structures in the 
Historic  Commercial Overlay “Windows shall be trimmed with wood, and wood framed storm windows 
are permitted.” AMC 17.40.190.A.2. states that for Contributing Structures in the Historic Commercial 
Overlay “Window frames and sashes shall be made of wood”. 
 
Further, AMC 17.40.020 regarding additions to Commercial Contributing Structures states: 

1. Previous additions to the original structure that were added prior to 1921 shall be subject 
to the same standards and criteria as the original portion of the structure; however, in the 
event that the addition does not match the original, the exterior features of the addition 
may be altered to match the original. 

2. Additions to contributing structures that were built in 1921 or later may be removed, and 
following removal, the exterior materials on that portion of the structure must match the 
remainder of the structure. 

 
Staff does not find appeal meet the requirements for remand outlined above and this criteria is not met. 

 
Subchapter 17.20.110 provides the criteria for a modification and revocation of approvals 
and states: The approval authority may modify or revoke any approval granted pursuant to this 
chapter for any of the following reasons: 
A. A material misrepresentation or mistake of fact made by the applicant in the application or in 
testimony and evidence submitted, whether such misrepresentation is intentional or unintentional; 
B. A failure to comply with the terms and conditions of approval;  
C. A material misrepresentation or mistake of fact or policy by the city in the written or oral report 
regarding the matter whether such misrepresentation is intentional or unintentional. 
 
FINDINGS: The subject property, Lot 2800 of Map 041W13BA, and commonly known as 21328 
Highway 99E NE, Aurora, OR 97002 is identified as Resource #140 on the Aurora Colony Historic 
Resources Inventory (July 1985)  (See Exhibit D). The subject property is zoned Commercial with a 



Appeal-2015-01, SILLS  Page 3 of 3 

historic Commercial Overlay and is subject to both Title 16-Land Development and Title 17- Historic 
Preservation of the Aurora Municipal Code 
 
Aurora Municipal Code (AMC) sections 17.40.190.A.1. states that for Contributing Structures in the 
Historic  Commercial Overlay “Windows shall be trimmed with wood, and wood framed storm windows 
are permitted.” AMC 17.40.190.A.2. states that for Contributing Structures in the Historic Commercial 
Overlay “Window frames and sashes shall be made of wood”. 
 
Staff does not find appeal meet the requirements for remand outlined above and this criteria is not met.  
 
In addition, the initial application stated that the type of project was, “replacement of broken and damages 
windows- currently a mixture of metal-vinyl-wood windows with new windows of same size and 
orientation. Trimmed in original wood. Paint entire building. 
 
 
IV. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Based on the findings in the staff report, Staff recommends that the City Council affirm the decision of 
the Historic Review Board based upon the findings and conclusion in the July 8, 2015 Historic Review 
Board decision for the subject property.  
 
 
V. CITY COUNCIL OPTIONS / SAMPLE MOTIONS 

 
1) Affirm the decision of the Historic Review Board based upon the findings and conclusions in the 

July 8, 2015 decision of the Historic Review Board for the subject property.   
 

2) Remand the matter back to the Historic Review Board, including findings and conclusions based 
upon the information and findings summarized under Section III above for remand by the 
appellant authority.   
 

3) Reverse the decision of the Historic Review Board, stating the findings and conclusion in the July 
8, 2015 decision of the Historic Review Board to be amended/reversed and providing amended 
findings and conclusions 
 

4) Modify the decision of the Historic Review Board, stating the findings and conclusions in the 
July 8, 2015 decision of the Historic Review Board to be modified.   

 
5) Continue the hearing (to a date and time certain) if additional information is needed to determine 

whether applicable standards and criteria are sufficiently addressed. 
 




























	1 Council Agenda September
	2 Council Minutes August 2015
	CITY OF AURORA CITY COUNCIL

	3 August Minutes PC 2015
	4 JUly HRB 2015 minutes
	5 Sept Correspondence
	6 Sept 2015 Finance report
	7 PWS City Council sept 15
	8 City Recorder Report August 2015
	9 Resolution Number 702 (Policy on Employee Health Insurance) -
	9a insurance evidence
	10 AshleyEngr_AuroraWWFPTaskOrder
	11 SEDCOR Conversation
	12 CC_SR_Appeal of HRB decision_APPEAL-2015-01
	CITY OF AURORA CITY COUNCIL

	13Exhibits A to E

